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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Shareholders of .M.E. Life Insurance Company Limited

Report on the Audit of Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of LM.E. Life Insurance Company
Limited (hereinafter referred to as 'the Company'), which comprise the statement of financial
position as at 31 Ashad 2076 (corresponding to 16™ July 2019), and the statement of profit or
loss, the statement of other comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement
of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary
of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the Company as at 31" Ashad 2076 (corresponding to 16™ July 2019), and of

its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Nepal
Financial Reporting Standards (NFRSs).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Nepal Standards on Auditing (NSAs). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in
accordance with the /CAN's Handbook of Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants together
with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in Nepal, and
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the
ICAN's Handbook of Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Information Other Than the Financial Statements and The Auditor’s Report
Thereon

The Company’s management is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the annual report. but does not include the financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon. The annual report is expected to be made available to

qcC 90 anfde i Q004/0g



[
IMELIFE™

Ensuring Future

us after the date of this auditor’s report. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the
other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge
obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears 1o be materially misstated. When we
read the annual report, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we are required
to communicate the matter to those charged with governance to correct the material misstatements.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the
Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with Nepal Financial Reporting Standards (NFRSs), and for such internal control as
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the
Company or to cease operations. or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with NSAs will always detect a material misstatement when
it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with NSAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

« Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.
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= Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's internal control.

s Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the management.

= Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained. whether a material uncertainty exists related to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained upto the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Company 1o cease 10 continue as a going concern.

We communicated with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

We further report that:

a. We have obtained all the information and explanations, which, to the best of our knowledge
and belief, were necessary for the audit.

b. The Statement of Financial Position, Statement of Profit or Loss, Statement of Other
Comprehensive Income, Statement of Cash Flows and the Statement of Changes in Equity
referred to in this report have been prepared in all material respect in accordance with Nepal
Financial Reporting Standards. Proper books of accounts as required by law have been kept
by the Company so far as appears from our examination of those books of accounts.
However, additional adjustments made in order to prepare financial statements as per Nepal
Financial Reporting Standards are yet to be incorporated in the books of accounts.

¢. To the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and from our
examination of the books of accounts of the Company, we have not come across any ¢ases
where the Board of Directors or representative or any employee of the Company has acted
in contrary to the provisions of law or misappropriated the assets or caused loss or damage
to the Company.
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" To the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and from our
examination of the books of accounts we have not come across any cases where accounting
fraud has been committed in the Company.

The Company has maintained reserve for unexpired risk as per Insurance Act 2049 and
Insurance Rules, 2049. The Insurance Fund, C ompulsory Reserve Fund and other funds of
similar nature have been maintained as prescribed by Beema Samiti.

We have not come across any cases where the company is involved in any business other
than those licensed by Beema Samiti or has issued any policies other than those approved
by Beema Samiti.

 We have not come across any cases where the Company has acted against the interest of
assured.

Apart from significant matters specified below, to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us and from our examination of the books of
accounts, the company has generally complied with the Directives issued by Beema Samiti:

|. As per section 54 of Corporate Governance Directives, 2075, insurance company shall
not appoint person/institution as its agent who has not obtained a valid agent license
from Beema Samiti and also should not be involved in any kind of insurance business
with such person/institution. However, on our verification of agent commission
expenses incurred during the financial year 2075/76, we noted that, business was
obtained through the individuals/entity who have completed the agent training but were
still in the process of obtaining the agent’s license from Beema Samiti. Premium
collected through 1,684 individuals/entity prior to the date of holding of agent’s license
amounts to a sum of NRs. 234,344,994. Similarly, commission expenses booked with
regard to such premium during the year 2075/76 amounts to a sum of NRs. 49,711,738.

2. As per section 4(a) of Insurer’s Registration and Insurance Business Operation
Directives, 2073, insurance company operating life insurance business is required to
maintain paid-up capital of NRs. 2 Arab. However the paid-up capital of the Company
as at 31 Ashad 2076 stands at NRs 1.4 Arab only.

Reportable findings noted during the course of audit have been incorporated in our
Preliminary Audit Report issued to the Audit Committee of the Company. The Board of
Directors have responded to our comments and findings.

Financial and other relevant information has been provided to the shareholders of the
Company.

. The Company is capable to bear all its accepted long term liabilities in proportion to the
assets held by it.

Internal control system of the Company seems 10 be effective.
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m. The statements received from the Branch offices of the Company, though not audited
independently, were adequate for the purpose of the audit.

BM Dhungana, FCA
Partner

For; B&B Associates
Chartered Accountants

Address: Manbhawan, Lalitpur
Date: 2077/12/30 (2021/04/12)
UDIN: 210412CA00327tvA7I
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I.ML.E. Life Insurance Company Limited

Registered and Corporate Office, KM C-26, Lainchaur
Statement of Financial Position as at 16 July 2019

Amount in NPR

] As at As at

ASSETS
Property, Plant and Equipment 4.1 80,025,859 72,027,035
Intangible assets 4.2 1,002,341 1,059,689
Financial Assets
Financial Investments 4.3 2,145,668,000 1,545,200,000
Loans at amortized cost 4.4 71,077,121 12,382,499
Reinsurance Receivables 4.5 1,748,544 1,650,000
Other Financial Assets 4.6 28,152,498 8,129,172
Other Assets 4.7 5,287,651 4,324,977
Deferred tax asset 4.26 85,479,803 21,558,881
Current tax assets (net) 4.8 56,231,822 26,774,631
Cash and cash equivalents 4.9 174,384,886 250,974,975
Total assets 2,649,058,525 1,944,081,858
EQUITY
Share Capital 4.14 1,400,000,000 1,400,000,000
Retained Earnings 128,051,251 91,163,911
Catastrophe Reserve 24,154,900 12,621,878
Other Reserves 4.15 87,039,467 23,118,544
Total Equity 1,639,245,618 1,526,904,333
LIABILITIES
Insurance contract liabilities 4.10 874,343,822 313,415,891
Financial Liabilities 4.11 102,641,204 89,462,184
Other Liabilities 4.12 5,468,312 1,963,765
Provisions 4.13 27,359,569 12,335,685
Total liabilities 1,009,812,907 417,177,524
Total Liabilities and Equity 2,649,058,525 1,944,081,858

The accompanying Notes are an Integral part of the Financial Statements

As per our attached report of even date,

Jagat Bohara Kabi Phuyal Dr. Ram Hari Aryal-Chairman CA. BM Dhungana
Chief Financial Officer =~ Chief Executive Officer Deep Chandra Regmi-Director Partner
Sanjay Adhikari-Director
Yugesh Bhakta Bade Shrestha-Director For B& B Associat
" . or ssociates
Ashwini Kumar Thakur-Director Chartered Accountants

Date: 30/12/2077
Lalitpur, Nepal
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I.M.E. Life Insurance Company Limited
Registered and Corporate Office, KMC-26, Lainchaur
Statement of Profit or Loss for the year ended 16 July 2019

Particulars

Year ended

Amount in NPR
Year ended

‘ Note |

16 July 2019

16 July 2018

Gross premium revenue 4.16 918,863,575 536,752,789
Outward reinsurance 4.16 (21,107,480) (37,850,399)
Net insurance premium revenue 897,756,095 498,902,389
Income from investments 4.17 192,757,521 173,348,110
Other income 4.18 14,432,479 5,553,459
Total income 1,104,946,095 677,803,958
Gross Claims and benefits paid 4.19 35,828,547 5,500,000
Recoveries from re-insurers 4.19 (11,871,539) (1,650,000)
Net Claims and benefits paid 23,957,008 3,850,000
Changes in Insurance Contract Liabilities 4.10 560,927,931 313,415,891
Agent Expenses 4.20 262,624,324 133,353,831
Regulatory Service fees 421 8,977,561 4,989,024
Employees benefit expenses 4.22 104,311,834 68,744,947
Impairment losses on financial assets 423 4,769,840 -
Depreciation & Amortization 424 16,840,583 7,729,983
Other expenses 4.25 73,171,843 51,075,995
Total expenses 1,055,580,924 583,159,672
Result of operating activities 49,365,171 94,644,286
Finance costs - -
Profit before income tax 49,365,171 94,644,286
Tax expense: (63,591,255) (21,558,881)
- Current income tax 329,668 -

- Deferred tax (income)/expense 4.26 (63,920,923) (21,558,881)
Profit for the year 112,956,426 116,203,167
Earnings Per Share (EPS)

Basic EPS (NPR) 4.27 8.07 8.30
Diluted EPS (NPR) 8.07 8.30

The accompanying Notes are an Integral part of the Financial Statements

Jagat Bohara Kabi Phuyal

Chief Financial Officer  Chief Executive Officer

el

As per our attached report of even date,

Dr. Ram Hari Aryal-Chairman

Deep Chandra Regmi-Director

Sanjay Adhikari-Director

Yugesh Bhakta Bade Shrestha-Director
Ashwini Kumar Thakur-Director

CA. BM Dhungana
Partner

For B& B Associates
Chartered Accountants
Date: 30/12/2077
Lalitpur, Nepal
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I.MLE. Life Insurance Company Limited
Registered and Corporate Office, KMC-26, Lainchaur
Statement of Other Comprehensive Income (OCI) for the year ended 16 July 2019

Amount in NPR

Particulars Note wEEn Year ended
16 July 2019 16 July 2018

Profit for the year

112,956,426

116,203,167

Other comprehensive income

a) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

- Gains/(losses) from investments in equity instruments measured at fair value

- Gains/(losses) on revaluation

- Actuarial gains/(losses) on defined benefit plans

- Income tax relating to above items

Net Other Comprehensive Income that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

b) Items that are or may be reclassified to profit or loss

- Gains/(losses) on cash flow hedge

- Exchange gains/(losses) (arising from translating financial assets of foreign operation)

- Income tax relating to above items

- Reclassity to profit or loss

Net Other Comprehensive Income that are or may be reclassified to profit or loss

Other comprehensive income for the period, net of income tax

Total comprehensive income for the year

112,956,426

116,203,167

Total comprehensive income attributable to:

Equity holders of the Insurance Company

112,956,426

116,203,167

Non-controlling interest

Total comprehensive income for the period

112,956,426

116,203,167

The accompanying Notes are an Integral part of the Financial Statements
As per our attached report of even date,

Jagat Bohara Kabi Phuyal Dr. Ram Hari Aryal-Chairman CA. BM Dhungana
Chief Financial Officer ~ Chief Executive Officer Deep Chandra Regmi-Director Partner

Sanjay Adhikari-Director

Yugesh Bhakta Bade Shrestha-Director

Ashwini Kumar Thakur-Director For B& B Associates

Chartered Accountants
Date: 30/12/2077
Lalitpur, Nepal
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I.MLE. Life Insurance Company Limited
Registered and Corporate Office, KMC-26, Lainchaur
Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 16 July 2019

Amount in NPR

Particulars Note e sl Year ended
16 July 2019 16 July 2018

Cash flow from operating activities:

Profit before income tax 49,365,171 94,644,287
Adjustments for: -

Depreciation and amortization 16,840,583 7,729,983
Acturial (Gain)/Loss on Long Service Leave

Impairment losses on financial assets

Loss/(Gain) on financial assets at fair value through profit and loss

Investment incomes (192,757,521) (173,348,110)
Loss/(Gain) on sale of assets (672,960) (43,195)
Changes in insurance contract liabilities 560,927,931 313,415,891
Chnages in premium earned but not received = -
Provision for staff bonus 5,485,019 9,375,211
Provision for gratuity and pensions 3,115,571 1,962,770
Provision for leave encashment 4,769,025 2,960,474
Other Provisions 5,158,816

Prior period items 1,021,075 (61,487)
Operating profit before changes to receivables and payables

Change in prepayments and trade receivables (18,818,754) (7,204,651)
Change in inventories

Changes in loans & advances (58,694,622) (12,382,499)
Change in reinsurance and other payables 11,542,804 88,750,732
Staff bonus paid - -
Termination employee benefits paid during the year - -
Cash generated from operations

Income tax paid (29,786,859) (26,731,181)
A. Net cash inflow from operating activities 357,495,279 299,068,225
Cash flow from investing activities:

Proceeds from disposal of property and equipment 2,680,000

Purchase of property,plant and equipment (26,605,474) (79,699,448)
Purchase of Intangible assets (183,625) (1,074,065)
Purchase of Investments held at amortized cost (600,468,000) (195,200,000)
Proceeds from sale of corporate shares

Interest & Dividend received 190,491,731 172,832,573
B. Net cash (outflow)/inflow from investing activities (434,085,367) (103,140,940)
Cash flow from financing activities:

Issue of equity shares - -
Settlement of borrowings = -
Dividends paid - -
C. Net cash outflow from financing activities - -
(Decrease)/Increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) (76,590,088) 195,927,286
Cash and cash equivalents at start of year 250,974,975 55,047,689
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 174,384,886 250,974,975

The accompanying Notes are an Integral part of the Financial Statements
As per our attached report of even date,

Jagat Bohara Kabi Phuyal CA. BM Dhungana

Chief Financial Officer  Chief Executive Officer Deep Chandra Regmi-Director Partner

Dr. Ram Hari Aryal-Chairman

Sanjay Adhikari-Director
Yugesh Bhakta Bade Shrestha-Director

Ashwini Kumar Thakur-Director For B& B Associates

Chartered Accountants
Date: 30/12/2077
Lalitpur, Nepal
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I.M.E. Life Insurance Company Limited
Registered and Corporate Office, KMC-26, Lainchaur

Significant Accounting Policies and Notes to Financial Statements

1. CORPORATE INFORMATION

IME Life Insurance Company Limited, herein referred to as “The Company”, is a public company
incorporated and domiciled in Nepal. The address of its registered and corporate office is
Kathmandu Metropolitan city(KMC)-26, Lainchaur, Nepal. The company has been registered under
the provisions of Company Act 2063 and Insurance Act 2049 on 15" Ashwin, 2065 and started its
operation from 20" Ashad 2074. The company has obtained license to operate life insurance
business on 20™ Ashad 2074. (License no. 10-073/74).

The Company is principally engaged in underwriting of life insurance and investment-linked
business through its 72 Branches throughtout the country. The company is under the process of
issuing ordinary shares to general public.

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors in its 106" meeting held on 30™
Chaitra 2077 These financial statements have been recommended for approval by the shareholders in
the 3rd Annual general meeting of the Company.

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION

2.1 Statement of Compliance
The Financial Statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Nepal Financial
Reporting Standards (hereafter referred as NFRS) published by Accounting Standards Board, Nepal
(ASB NEPAL) and pronounced by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Nepal (ICAN).

The Financial Statements of Company comprise of Statement of Financial Position as at 31*' Ashad
2076 (16™ July 2019), Statement of Profit or Loss, Statement of Other Comprehensive Income,
Statement of Changes in Equity, Statement of Cash Flows for the period 1% Shrawan 2075 to 31%
Ashad 2076 (17" July 2018 to 16" July 2019), Notes to the Financial Statements and Significant
Accounting Policies of the Company.

2.2 Responsibilities of the Financial Statements
The management of the company acknowledges in its responsibility for the preparation and
presentation of Financial Statements of the Company as per Nepal Financial Reporting Standards
(NFRS).
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2.3 Basis of Measurement

The Financial Statements of the Company have been prepared on historical cost convention, except
for the following items:

» Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (quoted) are measured at fair
value.

» Employee defined benefit obligations are measured in accordance with provision contained in
NAS 19 based on report of the Actuary.

» Insurance contract liabilities are determined in accordance with provision contained in NFRS 4
& actuarial report for Liability Adequacy Test (LAT). However, insurance contract liabilities
relating to non-particiapting products are also determined in accordance with the provisions
contained in Insurance Act 1992 and higher amount is considered as Final liability in
compliance with the Circular issued by Beema Samiti.

2.4 Functional and Presentation Currency

The Financial Statements of company are presented in Nepalese Rupees (NPR), which is the
currency of the primary economic environment in which the company operates. There was no
change in the company’s presentation and functional currency during the year. All financial
information presented in NPR has been rounded to the nearest rupee except where indicated
otherwise.

2.5 Use of Estimates, Assumptions and Judgements

NFRS requires the Company to make estimates and assumptions that will affect the assets,
liabilities, disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities, and profit or loss as reported in the
financial statements. The Company applies estimates in preparing and presenting the financial
statements and such estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed periodically. The revision
to accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimates are revised and are
applied prospectively.

Disclosures of the accounting estimates have been included in the relevant sections of the notes
wherever the estimates have been applied along with the nature and effect of changes of accounting
estimates, if any.

2.6 Presentation of Financial Statements

The assets and liabilities of the company presented in the Statement of Financial Position are
grouped by nature and listed in an order that reflects their relative liquidity or maturity pattern.

2.7 Materiality and Aggregation

Each material class of similar items is presented separately in the Financial Statements. Items of
dissimilar nature or functions too are presented separately unless they are immaterial. Financial
Assets and Financial Liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the Statement of
Financial Position only when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts
and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realize the assets and settle the liability
simultaneously. Income and expenses are not offset in the Statement of Profit or Loss unless
required or permitted by Nepal Financial Reporting Standards.
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2.8 Going Concern
The Board of Directors of the Company has made an assessment of the company’s ability to
continue as a going concern and is satisfied that it has the resources to continue its business for the
foreseeable future. Furthermore, the Board is not aware of any material uncertainties that may cast
significant doubt upon the company’s ability to continue as a going concern and they do not intend
either to liquidate or to cease operations of the company. Therefore, the Financial Statements are
prepared on a going concern basis.

2.9 Changes in Accounting Policies

Accounting policies are the specific principles, bases, conventions, rules and practices applied by
the Company in preparing and presenting financial statements. The Company is permitted to change
an accounting policy only if the change is required by a standard or interpretation; or results in the
financial statements providing reliable and more relevant information about the effects of
transactions, other events or conditions on the entity's financial position, financial performance, or
cash flows. The Company applies accounting policies consistently in its Financial Statements and
throughout all periods presented in its NFRS financial statements.

2.10 Reporting Standards issued but not yet effective
Standards issued but not yet effective up to the date of issuance of the financial statements are set
out below. The Company will adopt these standards when they become effective.

(i) NFRS 9- Financial Instruments: Classification and Measurement
NFRS 9, as issued reflects the first phase of work on replacement of NAS 39 and applies to
classification and measurement of financial assets and liabilities.

(ii) IFRS 17- Insurance Contract
NFRS 17-Insurance Contract was issued by the ASB Nepal and has a mandatory effective date
of annual periods beginning on or after 16™ July 2021. It supersedes IFRS 4 Insurance
Contract.

(iii) IFRS 16-Leases
NFRS 16 ‘Leases’ was issued by ASB Nepal and has a mandatory effective date of annual
periods beginning on or after 16" July 2021. It supersedes NAS-17 ‘Leases’.

(iv) IFRS-15: Revenue from contract with customers
The ASB Nepal issued a new standard for revenue recognition which overhauls the existing
revenue recognition standard and has a mandatory effective date of annual periods beginning
on or after 16" July 2021.

2.11 Discounting
Discounting has been applied where assets and liabilities are non-current and the impact of the
discounting is material.

39
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all periods presented in the
financial statements.

3.1 Property, Plant and Equipment

Basis of Recognition
Property and Equipment are recognized if it is probable that future economic benefits associated with
the asset will flow to the Company and cost of the asset can be measured reliably.

Basis of Measurement

Property and equipment is initially recorded at cost. and subsequently measured at historical cost less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, with the exception of land which is not
depreciated. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the
items.

Subsequent Costs

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow
to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other expenditure are charged
to profit or loss during the financial period in which they are incurred.

Repairs and maintenance

Repairs and maintenance are charged to the Statement of Profit or Loss during the financial period in
which they are incurred. The cost of major renovations is included in the carrying amount of the
assets when it is probable that future economic benefits in excess of the most recently assessed
standard of performance of the existing assets will flow to the Company and the renovation replaces
an identifiable part of the asset. Major renovations are depreciated during the remaining useful life of
the related asset.

Depreciation

The Company applies written down value method of depreciation calculation except for leasehold
development and intangible assets. Depreciation of the assets commences when the assets are ready
for their intended use which is generally on commissioning and not when it starts to be used. Items of
Property and Equipment are depreciated in a manner that amortizes the cost (or other amount
substituted for cost) of the assets after commissioning, less its residual value, over their useful lives
on a Written down value basis. Land is not depreciated. Each part of an item of property and
equipment with a cost that is significant in relation to the total cost of the item shall be depreciated
separately. A significant part of an item of property and equipment may have a useful life and a
depreciation method that are the same as the useful life and the depreciation method of another
significant part of that same item. Such parts may be grouped in determining the depreciation charge.
The depreciation charge for each period shall be recognized in profit or loss unless it is included in
the carrying amount of another asset.
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Estimated rate of Depreciation

The company has grouped Property and Equipment under the following categories and rate of
Depreciation by of each group has been determined by considering the life and salvage value of the
assets following written down value method as under:

Asset Class Rate of Depreciation

Furniture & Fixture 25%
Computer & Accessories 25%
Office equipment 25%
Motor Vehicle 20%
Other assets 15%

Depreciation on Leasehold assets is charged on the basis of leasehold period by following straight
line method of depreciation.

Capital items costing to less than NPR 5,000 has been treated as revenue expenditure in the year of
purchase.

Property and equipment’s residual values and useful lives are reviewed at each Statement of Financial
Position date and changes, if any, are treated as changes in accounting estimate.

Carrying value

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each
reporting date. An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its estimated recoverable
amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount. The residual
values of assets that are not insignificant are reassessed annually.

De - recognition

An item of Property and Equipment is de-recognized upon disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected from its use. Gains and losses on disposal of property and equipment are
determined by reference to their carrying amount and are included in Profit and Loss for the period.
When replacement costs are recognised in the carrying amount of an item of Property and Equipment,
the remaining carrying amount of the replaced part is de-recognised.

3.2 Intangible assets

Basis of Recognition and Measurement

An intangible asset is recognized if it is probable that future economic benefits that are attributable to
the asset will flow to the Company and the cost of the asset can be measured reliably. Intangible
assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial recognition,
intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortization and any accumulated
impairment losses. Internally generated intangibles, excluding capitalized development costs, are not
capitalized and the related expenditure is reflected in statement of Profit or Loss in the year in which
the expenditure is incurred.
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Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure on Intangible assets is capitalized only when it increases the future economic
benefits embodied in the specific asset to which it relates. All other expenditure is expensed as
incurred.

Useful Economic Life and Amortization of Intangible assets
Intangible assets are amortized on a straight line basis over the period of services to be rendered.
Amortization is recorded in the statement of Profit or Loss.

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortized over the useful economic life. Amortization period
and the amortization method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at
each financial year end. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of
future economic benefits embodied in the asset are accounted for by changing the amortization period
or method, as appropriate, and they are treated as changes in accounting estimates.

Amortization expense on intangible assets with finite lives is recognized in the statement of profit or
loss in the expense category consistent with the function of the intangible asset.

Amortization is calculated using the straight-line method to write down the cost of intangible assets to
their residual values over their estimated useful lives as follows;

Asset Class Amortization
Useful Life Method

| Software | 5 years | SLM |

De-recognition of Intangible assets

An intangible asset is de-recognized on disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
from it. The gain or loss arising from de-recognition of such intangible assets is included in the
statement of profit or loss when the item is de-recognized.

Impairment of Intangible assets

An impairment review is performed whenever there is an indication of impairment. When the
recoverable amount is less than the carrying value, an impairment loss is recognized in the statement
of profit or loss.

Assessment of impairment of intangible assets
The Management has assessed the potential impairment indicators of Intangible assets as at 31%
Ashad 2076. Based on the assessment, no impairment indicators were identified.

3.3 Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs incurred for the constructions of any qualifying asset are capitalized during the
period of time that is required to complete and prepare the asset for its intended use. Other
borrowing costs are recognised in the profit or loss in the period in which they occur.
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3.4 Capital Work in Progress
These are expenses of capital nature directly incurred in the construction of buildings, major plant
and machinery and system development, awaiting capitalization. Capital work-in-progress would be
transferred to the relevant asset when it is available for use, i.e. when it is in the location and
condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management. Capital
work-in-progress is stated at cost less any accumulated impairment losses.

3.5 Taxes

As per Nepal Accounting Standard- NAS 12, Tax expense is the aggregate amount included in
determination of profit or loss for the period in respect of current and deferred taxation. Income Tax
expense is recognized in the Statement of Profit or Loss, except to the extent it relates to items
recognized directly in equity or Other Comprehensive Income in which case it is recognized in
equity or in Other Comprehensive Income. The Management periodically evaluates positions taken
in tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation.
It establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to tax
authorities.

Current Income Tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities for the current period are measured at the amount expected
to be recovered from or paid to Inland Revenue Department in respect of the current year, using the
tax rates and tax laws enacted or subsequently enacted on the reporting date and any adjustment to
tax payable in respect of prior years.

Current income tax relating to items recognised directly in equity or OCI is recognised in equity or
OCI and not in the Statement of Profit or Loss.

Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in
which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions, where
appropriate.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences at the reporting date
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting
purposes. Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences, except;

a) When the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or of an asset or
liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss.

b) In respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries,
associates and interests in joint ventures, where the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

Deferred Tax Assets and Deferred Tax liabilities

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, carry forward of unused
tax credits and unused tax losses, to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and
unused tax losses can be utilized except where the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
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temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is
not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit
nor taxable profit or loss.

Carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the
deferred income tax asset to be utilized. Unrecognized deferred tax assets are reassessed at each
reporting date and are recognized to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profit
will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the year
when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognized outside the statement of profit or loss is recognized
outside statement of profit or loss. Deferred tax items are recognized in correlation to the
underlying transaction either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset, if a legally enforceable right exists to set-
off current tax assets against current income tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same
taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

3.6 Financial Instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial
liability or equity instrument of another entity.

Recognition

The Company initially recognizes a Financial Asset or a Financial Liability in its Statement of
Financial Position when, and only when, it becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. The Company initially recognizes loans and advances, deposits on the date that they are
originated which is the date that the Company becomes party to the contractual provisions of the
instruments. Investments in equity instruments, bonds, debenture, are recognized on trade date at
which the Company commits to purchase/ acquire the Financial Assets. Regular purchase and sale
of Financial Assets are recognized on trade date at which the Company commits to purchase or sell
the asset.

Classification
Financial Assets

The Company classifies the Financial Assets as subsequently measured at amortized cost or fair
value on the basis of the Company’s business model for managing the Financial Assets and the
contractual cash flow characteristics of the Financial Assets.

The Financial Assets are classified under two classes which are detailed as under;
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i. Financial assets measured at amortized cost

The Company classifies a Financial Asset measured at amortized cost if both of the
following conditions are met:

e The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets in order to
collect contractual cash flows and

e The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

ii. Financial asset measured at fair value

Financial assets other than those measured at amortized cost are measured at fair value.
Financial assets measured at fair value are further classified into two categories as below:

¢ Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial assets are classified as Fair Value through Profit or Loss (FVTPL) if they are
held for trading or are designated at fair value through profit or loss. Upon initial
recognition, transaction cost is directly attributable to the acquisition are recognized in
profit or loss as incurred. Such assets are subsequently measured at fair value and
changes in fair value are recognized in Statement of Profit or Loss.

¢ Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income

Investment in an equity instrument that is not held for trading and at the initial
recognition, the Company makes an irrevocable election that the subsequent changes in
fair value of the instrument is to be recognized in other comprehensive income are
classified as Financial Assets at Fair Value Though Other Comprehensive Income. Such
assets are subsequently measured at fair value and changes in fair value are recognized
in other comprehensive income.

II. Financial Liabilities

The Company classifies its financial liabilities, other than financial guarantees and loan
commitments, as follows;

i. Financial Liabilities at Fair Value through Profit or Loss

Financial liabilities are classified as fair value through profit or loss if they are held for
trading or are designated at fair value through profit or loss. Upon initial recognition,
transaction costs are directly attributable to the acquisition are recognized in Statement
of Profit or Loss as incurred. Subsequent changes in fair value is recognized as profit or
loss

ii. Financial Liabilities measured at amortized cost

All financial liabilities other than measured at fair value though profit or loss are
classified as subsequently measured at amortized cost using effective interest rate
method.
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C. Measurement

i

ii.

Initial Measurement

A financial asset or financial liability is measured initially at fair value plus or minus, for an item
not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable to its
acquisition or issue. Transaction cost in relation to financial assets and liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss are recognized in Statement of Profit or Loss.

Subsequent Measurement

A financial asset or financial liability is subsequently measured either at fair value or at
amortized cost based on the classification of the financial asset or liability. Financial asset or
liability classified as measured at amortized cost is subsequently measured at amortized cost
using effective interest rate method.

The amortized cost of a financial asset or financial liability is the amount at which the financial
asset or financial liability is measured at initial recognition minus principal repayments, plus or
minus the cumulative amortization using the effective interest rate (EIR) method of any
difference between that initial amount and the maturity amount, and minus any reduction for
impairment or un-collectability.

Financial assets classified at fair value are subsequently measured at fair value. The subsequent
changes in fair value of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are recognized in
Statement of Profit or Loss whereas of financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive
income are recognized in other comprehensive income.

D. Derecognition

Derecognition of Financial Assets

The Company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from
the financial asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a
transaction in which substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are
transferred or in which the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership and it does not retain control of the financial asset.

On de-recognition of a financial asset, the difference between the carrying amount of the asset
(or the carrying amount allocated to the portion of the asset transferred) and the consideration
received (including any new asset obtained less any new liability assumed) shall be recognized
in profit and loss account.

In transactions in which the Company neither retains nor transfers substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of a financial asset and it retains control over the asset, the Company
continues to recognize the asset to the extent of its continuing involvement, determined by the
extent to which it is exposed to changes in the value of the transferred asset.

Derecognition of Financial Liabilities

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or
canceled or expired. Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same
lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability
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and the recognition of a new liability. The difference between the carrying value of the original
financial liability and the consideration paid is recognized in Statement of Profit or Loss.

Offsetting of financial assets and financial liabilities

The company has not offset any of its financial assets with financial liabilities as at 16™ July 2019.
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount are reported in the statement
of financial position only when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts
and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liability
simultaneously.

Determination of Fair Value

Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled, between
knowledgeable, willing parties in an arm’s length transaction on the measurement date. The fair
value of a liability reflects its non-performance risk

The fair values are determined according to the following hierarchy:

Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived from unadjusted quoted prices in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 valuations are those with quoted prices for similar instruments in active markets or
quoted prices for identical or similar instruments in inactive markets and financial instruments
valued using models where all significant inputs are observable.

Level 3 portfolios are those where at least one input, which could have a significant effect on the
instrument’s valuation, is not based on observable market data.

When available, the Company measures the fair value of an instrument using quoted prices in an
active market for that instrument. A market is regarded as active if quoted prices are readily and
regularly available and represent actual and regularly occurring market transactions on an arm’s
length basis.

The best evidence of the fair value of a financial instrument at initial recognition is the
transaction price — i.e. the fair value of the consideration given or received. However, in some
cases, the fair value of a financial instrument on initial recognition may be different to its
transaction price. If such fair value is evidenced by comparison with other observable current
market transactions in the same instrument (without modification) or based on a valuation
technique whose variables include only data from observable markets, then the difference is
recognized in profit or loss on initial recognition of the instrument. In other cases, the difference
is not recognized in profit or loss immediately but is recognized over the life of the instrument
on an appropriate basis or when the instrument is redeemed, transferred or sold, or the fair value
becomes observable.

All unquoted equity investments are recorded at book value per share.
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Impairment

At each reporting date the Company assesses whether there is any indication that an asset may have
been impaired. If such indication exists, the recoverable amount is determined. A financial asset or
a group of financial assets is impaired and impairment losses are incurred if, and only if, there is
objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events occurring after the initial
recognition of the asset (a loss event), and that loss event (or events) has an impact on the estimated
future cash flows of the financial asset or group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated.

The Company considers the following factors in assessing objective evidence of impairment:

e Whether the counterparty is in default of principal or interest payments.

e When a counterparty files for bankruptcy and this would avoid or delay discharge of its
obligation.

e Where the Company initiates legal recourse of recovery in respect of a credit obligation
of the counterpart.

e Where the Company consents to a restructuring of the obligation, resulting in a
diminished financial obligation, demonstrated by a material forgiveness of debt or
postponement of scheduled payments.

e Where there is observable data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the
estimated future cash flows of a group of financial assets, although the decrease cannot
yet be identified with specific individual financial assets.

The Company considers evidence of impairment for loans and advances and held-to-maturity
investment securities at both a specific asset and collective level. All individually significant loans
and advances and held-to-maturity investment securities are assessed for specific impairment. Those
found not to be specifically impaired are then collectively assessed for any impairment that has been
incurred but not yet identified.

Loans and advances and held-to-maturity investment securities that are not individually significant
are collectively assessed for impairment by grouping together loans and advances and held-to-
maturity investment securities with similar risk characteristics. Impairment test is done on annual
basis for trade receivables and other financial assets based on the internal and external indication
observed.

Impairment losses on assets measured at amortised cost

Financial assets carried at amortised cost (such as amounts due from other entities, loans and
advances to customers as well as held—to—maturity investments) is impaired, and impairment losses
are recognized, only if there is objective evidence as a result of one or more events that occurred
after the initial recognition of the asset. The amount of the loss is measured as the difference
between the asset's carrying amount and the deemed recoverable value of Assets.

3.7 Cash and Cash Equivalent

Cash and cash equivalent in the statement of financial position comprise cash at banks and in hand
and short-term deposits with a maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value net of any provision.
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3.8 Other Financial Assets

These includes receivable from debtors including doubtful debts, policy loans, deposits, share
application, prepaid and staff advance.These are recognized on accrual basis.The fair value of
receivable approximates its carrying amount because of its short term maturities. As it falls under the
definition of financial instrument, impairment testing is conducted at the end of the year. And if
objective evidences such as information based on facts that can be proved by means of search like
analysis, measurement, and observation of impairment exists, then an estimate of impairment in
value of receivable is calculated and charged to Statement of Profit or Loss.

3.9 Share Capital
Shares are classified as equity when there is no obligation to transfer cash or other assets. Equity is
defined as residual interest in total assets of the Company after deducting all its liabilities. Common
shares are classified as equity of the Company and distributions thereon are presented in statement of
changes in equity. The authorized share capital of the company is NPR 3,000,000,000, Issued capital
is NPR 2,000,000,000 and the paid up capital of company is NPR 1,400,000,000. As per Beema
Samiti, the paid up capital of life insurance company should be at least NPR 2,000,000,000.

3.10 Retained Earnings
These include revenue reserve carried forward from previous year plus profit for the year and
dividend paid out as well as adjustment arising from prior year transaction specially pertaining to tax
adjustments. These also include Regulatory Reserve transferred as per the direction of Beema Samiti
dated 2075.09.12.

3.11 Catastrophe Reserve
The Company has allocated insurance fund for the amount which is 10% of the distributable profit
for the year as per Regulator's Directive on distributable profit derived as per Special Purpose
Financial Statement. Total catastrophic reserve created at the end of FY 2075.76 amounts to NPR.
24,154,900

3.12 Other Reserves

Regulatory Reserve

As per Directive of Beema Samiti dated 2075.09.12, any excess profit for the year in the NFRS
financial statements in comparision to the profit as per special purpose financial statements needs to
be transferred to regulatory reserve. In consideration to the directive, the company has transferred
NPR 1,559,664 to regulatory reserve up to FY 2074.75. Since current year profit under the NFRS
based Financial statement is lower than the profit as per Special purpose Financial statement,
regulatory reserve has not been created during current FY 2075.76.

Deferred Tax Reserve
As on 31 Ashad 2076, deferred tax reserve amounts to NPR 85,479,803.
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3.13 Insurance Contract Liablities

A. Insurance Contracts

a. Product Classification
As per NFRS 4 — Appendix A, Insurance contract is a contract under which one party (the
insurer) accepts significant insurance risk from another party (the policyholder) by agreeing to
compensate the policyholder if a specified uncertain future event (the insured event) adversely
affects the policyholder. Considering the provisions, all life insurance policies issued by the
company fall under Insurance Contract covered under NFRS 4.

Further, NFRS 4 requires an insurer to 'unbundle' insurance contracts that has deposit
components embedded into it (In addition to the investment component) in certain circumstances
and to account for the components of a contract as if they were separate contracts. In other
circumstances unbundling is either optional or is prohibited altogether. There are separate
accounting treatments for measurement on insurance contract with deposit component.

However, since none of the insurance products (insurance contracts of the company) have
deposit components that can be measured, the company has continued to proceed with its current
accounting practices for all products without unbundling the deposit components.

B. Life Insurance Contract Liability

NFRS 4 permits a wide range of accounting treatments to be adopted for the recognition and
measurement of insurance contract liabilities, including liablities in respect of insurance contracts.
The company calculates insurance contract liabilities for insurance contracts as per guidelines
prescribed by the regulator (Beema Samiti), whereby the liability represents the present value of
estimated future policy related outflows,, less the present value of estimated future gross premiums
to be collected from policyholders. This method uses best estimates assumptions for mortality,
morbidity, lapse, expenses and investment yields. Interest rate assumptions can vary by product and
are prescribed by regulation. Mortality, morbidity, lapse and expenses assumptions are based on the
experience studies, allowing for Risk Margin as prescribed by the Regulator. The company
excercises significant judgement in making appropriate assumptions.

The judgement exercised in the valuation of insurance contract liabilities affect the amount
recognized in the financial statements as insurance contract benefits and insurance contract
liabilities.

Since no profit arises under the statement of Other Comprehensive Income (SOCI), no fair value
reserve has been recognized.

. Liability Adequacy Test (LAT)

The company evaluates the adequacy of its insurance contract liabilities at least annually. Liability
adequacy is assessed by portfolio of contracts in accordance with the company's manner of
acquiring, servicing and measuring the profitability of its insurance contracts.

For Life insurance contracts, insurance contract liabilities, reduced by value of business acquired on
acquired insurance contracts, are compared with the gross premium valuation calculated on a best
estimate basis, as of the valuation date. If there is a deficiency, the unamortized balance of value of



[
IMELIFE™

Ensuring Future

business acquired on acquired insurance contracts are written down to the extent of the deficiency. If
a deficiency exists, the net liability is increased by the amount of the remaining deficiency.
Significant judgement is exercised in determining the level of aggregation at which liability
adequacy testing is performed and in selecting best estimate assumptions.

At each reporting date, an assessment is made of whether the recognized Life insurance liabilities are
adequate, net of related Present Value In-force by using liability adequacy test as laid out under a
Gross Premium Valuation method. The liability value is adjusted to the extent that it is insufficient
to meet future benefits and expenses. In performing the liability adequacy test, following basis are
considered which are summarized as follows :

i. The accounting policy for liability testing including the frequency and nature of testing
The liability is computed as per the actuarial valuation directive of Beema Samiti for life
Insurance Business, 2076. The statutory liability is computed on a yearly basis, at the end of
every financial year.

ii. The cash flow considered

The various benefits considered include Death Benefit, Survival Benefit and Maturity Benefit.
Cash flows are projected in accordance with the product specifications for each plan. Death
related cash flows are projected for protection plans, whereas both death and maturity benefit
related cash flows are projected for endowment products. Similarly, survival benefits and other
benefits are projected in accordance with the product specifications. The credit of reinsurance is
considered in the computation of reserves by allowing for cash flows pertaining to reinsurance at
policy level. Reinsurance premiums are considered as outgo and recovery from reinsurer on
expected claims are considered as income while calculating the reserve for each policy.

iii. Description on Valuation method and assumptions

Valuation Methodology
a. Gross Premium Method has been used to arrive at Mathematical Reserves under each
contract.

b. All the future cashflows like premiums, commissions, expenses, benefits, vested and future
bonuses etc have been considered.

c. As per Beema Samiti Directives, policies having negative reserves, the mathematical
resrves have been set to zero.

d. Higher of Surrender Value or Mathematical Reserve calculated by the prescribed gross
premium method have been considered wherever surrender value is higher than
mathematical reserve.

e. For Non Par Micro Term Policies where policy term is one year, Unearned Premium
Reserve (UPR) method has been used to determine liabilities.

f. For Non Par Expat Policies (other than pool arrangements), gross premium valuation
method has been used.

g. Reserves for rider benefit equal to one year’s rider premium have been considered. For
substandard lives, one year extra premium have been held as reserve.

h. Reisnurance has not been considered for Participating business in the valuation.
Reinsurance has been considered for Expat Non Pool Arrangement in the valuation.

i. Adequate provisions for contingency claim, revival of lapsed policies, IBNR and
immediate claim payments have been made.
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Valuation Assumptions

The assumptions used in the Gross Premium Valuation basis are realistic with margin for
adverse deviation. The best estimate assumptions are derived on the basis of experience analysis
performed prior to each valuation, after accounting for the long term future outlook. The results
of the experience analysis are given in the valuation report.

Valuation Assumptions as at 31.03.2076

Mortality For Endowment and Money Back Policies:
105% of NALM 2009

For Term Assurance Policies:

N

A
Claim Expenses 5 per thousand Sum Assured

Premium Related Expenses e Initial — 35%

e During premium paying term for regular
premium policies — 6%

e Beyond premium paying term for regular
premium policies — 0.50%

e Beyond premium paying term for single
premium policies — 0.05%

Phpa

Valuation Rate of Interest 6% p.a

Assumption for Expat Policies

Parameter Valuation Assumptions as at 31.03.2076

Mortality 60% of NALM 2009

Disability Rate 20% per 1,000 Sum Assured

Critical Illness Rate 20% of Reinsurer rate

Expenses 3% of Single Premium per annum

Valuation Rate of Interest 6% p.a

iv. The discounting policy

Gross Premium Method has been used and have discounted the future cash flows ( premium
receivable, commission payable, excepted future expenses and all type of benefit payouts) at an
interest rate of 6% and inflation rate of 4%.

v. Aggregation practices

It may be noted that the reserves are computed separately for each policy. The results may then
be presented by product, policy status etc. The results are presented in the valuation report at the
product level.

3.14 Provision for Unexpired Risk

Provision for unexpired risk reserve included provision created for Term life Insurance as specified
by actuary. However, no such provisions have been made for other policies. Changes brought about
in provision for unexpired risk reserve from year to year, as certified by the actuary, are recognized
in the statement of profit and loss Account.
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3.15 Employee Benefits
a. Short Term Employee Benefits

Short term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are
expensed as the related service is provided. A liability is also recognized for the amount
expected to be paid under bonus expenses required by the Bonus Act, 2030 to pay the amount as
a result of past service provided by the employee and the obligation can be estimated reliably
under short term employee benefits. Short-term employee benefits include all the following
items (if payable within 12 months after the end of the reporting period):

e wages, salaries and social security contributions,

e paid annual leave and paid sick leave,

e profit-sharing and bonuses and

e non-monetary benefits

b. Post-Employment Benefits
Post-employment benefit plan includes the followings;

i. Defined Contribution Plan

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which the Company pays
fixed contributions into a separate entity and has no legal or constructive obligation to pay
further amounts. Obligations for contributions to defined contribution plans are recognized as
personnel expenses in profit or loss in the periods during which related services are rendered.
Contributions to a defined contribution plan that are due more than 12 months after the end of
the reporting period in which the employees render the service are discounted to their present
value.

All employees of the Company are entitled to receive benefits under the provident fund, a
defined contribution plan, in which both the employee and the Company contribute monthly at a
pre-determined rate of 10% of the basic salary. Similarly, the company provides gratuity of
8.33% of basic salary to its employees and has no legal or constructive obligations to pay further
amounts.

The Company does not assume any future liability for Provident Fund and Gratuity benefits
other than its annual contribution.

c. Other long term benefits
Other long-term employee benefits are all employee benefits other than short-term employee
benefits, post-employment benefits and termination benefits. Other long term benefit includes
long term paid absences such home leave and sick leave. The company recognizes all actuarial
gain and losses in statement of profit or loss.
For other long-term employee benefits, an entity shall recognise the net total of the following
amounts in profit or loss,
- service cost
- interest cost
- re-measurement of the net defined benefit liability including actuarial gains or losses
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Summary of Actuary Report for Leave
Amount in NPR

Particulars As at 16 July 2019 As at 16 July 2018

Expenses Recognized In Profit or
Loss

Current Service Cost 3,806,676 245,389
Interest Cost 175,308 -
Expected Return on Plan Assets - -
Actuarial (Gain)/Loss 787,041 2,715,085
Past Service Cost = -

Expenses Recognized In Profit or

4,769,025 2,960,474
Loss

Expenses Recognized in Other
Comprehensive Income

Acturial (Gain)/Loss on Obligation - -
Acturial (Gain)/Loss on Plan Assets - -

Changes in Present Value
Obligations
PV of Obligation at beginning of the

2,960,474 -
year

Interest Cost 175,308 245,389
Current Service Cost 3,806,676 -
Benefit Paid - -
Actuarial (Gain)/ Loss 787,041 2,715,085
Liability at the end of the Year 7,729,499 2,960,474

Change in Fair Value of Plan Assets
FV of Plan Asset at Beginning of the
Year

Interest Income - -

Expected Return on Plan Assets - -

Contribution by Employer - -
Benefit Paid - -
Actuarial (Gain)/Loss on Plan Assets - -
Fair Value of Plan Asset at End of
the Year

Amount Recognized in SOFP
Present Value of Obligations at Year
end

7,729,499 2,960,474

Fair Value of Plan Assets at Year end - -
Total 7,729,499 2,960,474
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Acturial Assumptions

Discount Rate 6% 6%

Rate of increase in compensation 5% 5%

Expected average remaining service 8.21 19.85

Mortality Nepali Assured Lives Mortality Nepali Assured Lives Mortality
(2009) (2009)

Employee Attrition Rate 10% 2%

d. Termination Benefits

Termination benefits are recognised as an expense when the Company is demonstrably
committed, without realistic possibility of withdrawal, to a formal detailed plan to either
terminate employment before the normal retirement date, or to provide termination benefits as a
result of an offer made to encourage voluntary redundancy. Termination benefits for voluntary
redundancies are recognized as an expense if the Company has made an offer of voluntary
redundancy, it is probable that the offer will be accepted, and the number of acceptances can be
estimated reliably. If benefits are payable more than 12 months after the reporting date, then they
are discounted to their present value.

3.16 Accruals and other payable:
These mainly include agent commission and incentive payable, service charge payable, TDS on
commission payable to agents, bonus to employee and other similar liabilities. These are recognized
on accrual basis .The fair value of deposit liabilities approximates its carrying amount because of its
short term maturities as such no fair value treatment for the same are given.

3.17 Re-insurance Premium Payable
These includes premium payable to reinsurer. These are recognized on accrual basis.

3.18 Leases
Lease payments under an operating lease shall be recognized as an expense on a straight-line basis
over the lease term unless either:
(a) Another systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern of the user’s benefit even if
the payments to the lessors are not on that basis; or
(b) The payments to the lessor are structured to increase in line with expected general inflation to
compensate for the lessor’s expected inflationary cost increases. If payments to the lessor vary
because of factors other than general inflation, then this condition is not met.
Majority of lease agreements entered by the Company are with the clause of normal increment of
5%-10% p.a. which the management assumes are in line with the lessor’s expected inflationary cost
increases.
The company has recognized NPR 25,673,276 as an operating lease expense during the period FY
2075/76.
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3.19 Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a
result of a past event, and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation. Where the Company expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, the
reimbursement is recognized as a separate asset but only when the reimbursement is virtually
certain. Expense relating to any provision is presented in the statement of income net of any
reimbursement.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounting using a current pre-
tax rate that reflects, where appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. Where discounting is used,
the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognized as a finance cost.

Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. If it
is no longer probable that an outflow of resources would be required to settle the obligation, the
provision is reversed. Contingent assets are not recognized in the financial statements. However,
contingent assets are assessed continually and if it is virtually certain that an inflow of economic
benefits will arise, the asset and related income are recognized in the period in which the change
occurs.

3.20 Foreign Currency Translation

The Company’s financial statements are presented in Nepalese Rupee (NPR) which is also the
company’s functional currency. Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the
Company’s entities at their functional currency spot rate prevailing at the date the transaction first
qualifies for recognition. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
translated at the functional currency spot rate of exchange at the reporting date.

3.21 Revenue Recognition

3.21.1 Insurance Premium

As per regulatory requirement, the premium income is recognised on cash basis. Gross Premium
received and premium paid on reinsurance ceded are disclosed separately.

Premiums are shown before deduction of commission and are gross of any taxes or duties levied
on such premium.

As per instruction of Beema Samiti, Foreign Employment term life policy after 1 Magh 2075
have been managed by Pool of life insurance companies(FE Pool). Insurance premium income
related to FE Pool has been recognised in the Financials statement based on statement obtained
from Beema Samiti.

3.21.2 Income from Investments

a. Interest income
Interest income is recognized in the statement of profit or loss as it accrues and is calculated by
using the effective interest rate method. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts or payments through the expected life of the
financial asset or liabilities (or, where appropriate, a shorter period) to the carrying amount of
the financial asset or liabilities. When calculating the effective interest rate, the Company
estimates future cash flows considering all contractual terms of the financial instrument, but not
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future credit losses. The calculation of the effective interest rate includes all transaction costs
and fees paid or received that are an integral part of the effective interest rate. Transaction costs
include incremental costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of a financial
asset or liability.

b. Dividend Income
As per NAS 18, dividend income or expense shall be recognized when right to receive dividend
is established or dividend is declared by the company.

3.21.3 Other Income
a. Fair Value Gains and Losses
Fair value gains and losses are recognized in the statement of Other Comprehensive Income
until such instrument is derecognised or impaired. Fair value gains and losses on financial
assets at FVTPL are recognized in the statement of profit or loss.

b. Realised Gains and Losses
Realised gains and losses recorded in the statement of profit or loss include gains and losses on
financial assets, property and equipment. Gains and losses on the sale of investments are
calculated as the difference between net sales proceeds and the original cost, amortised cost or
carrying amount, depending on the classification of the assets and are recorded on occurrence
of the sale transaction.

3.22 Net Claims & Benefits Paid
a. Gross claims and benefits
Gross claims and benefits for insurance contracts include the cost of all claims arising during
the year including internal and external claims handling costs that are directly related to the
processing and settlement of claims and policyholder bonuses declared on contracts as well as
changes in the gross valuation of insurance and liabilities. Death claims and surrenders are
recorded on the basis of notification received. Maturities and annuity payments are recorded
when due.

b. Reinsurance Claims
Reinsurance claims are recognized when the related gross insurance claim is recognized
according to the terms of the relevant contract.

3.23 Change in Insurance Contract Liabilities
Change in life insurance contract liability and unexpired risk are recognized in the statement of
profit and loss based on actuarial valuation made in line with the directions provided by Beema
Samiti.

3.24 General Expenses
All the general expenses including medical fee, net service charges, other direct expense and
management expense are recognized on accrual basis when the company is obligated to make the
payments, either legally or constructively.
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3.25 Staff Bonus

Staff Bonus has been allocated at the rate of 10% of profit earned before bonus and taxes as per the
Financial statement prepared under NFRS.

3.26 Capital commitments and contingencies

All discernible risks are accounted for in determining the amount of all known liabilities.
Contingent liabilities are possible obligations whose existence will be confirmed only by uncertain
future events or present obligations where the transfer of economic benefit is not probable or cannot
be reliably measured. Contingent liabilities are not recognized in the statement of financial position
but are disclosed unless they are remote.

The company does not have any capital commitments and contingencies other than related with
insurance business as on 31 Ashad 2076.

3.27 Events occurring after the reporting date

Events after the reporting period are those events, favorable and unfavorable, that occur between
the reporting date and the date when the financial statements are authorized for issue.

All material post reporting date events have been considered and where appropriate, adjustments or
disclosures have been made in the respective notes to the financial statements.

3.28 Earnings per Share

Basic earnings per share (EPS) amount are calculated by dividing the net profit attributable to
shareholders by weighted average number of shares outstanding at the end of the year. Diluted EPS
amounts are calculated by dividing the profit attributable to ordinary equity holders of the parent by
the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year, plus the weighted
average number of ordinary shares that would be issued on the conversion of all the dilutive
potential ordinary shares into ordinary shares. Both Basic and diluted EPS of the company is NPR
8.07 for the year 2075/76.

3.29 Related Party Disclosure

The company has carried out transactions in the ordinary course of business on an arm's length
basis at commercial rates with the parties who are defined as related parties as per NAS 24; Related
Party Disclosures, except for the transactions with Key Management Personnel, which was
governed by employee rules and regulations of the company uniformly applicable to all staffs.

Following are identified as related party of the company under the requirement of NAS 24 :
i.  Substantial shareholders of the company and companies whose substantial share is held by
the company.
ii. Key managerial personnel and their close family members if any.
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a. Transaction with Key Managerial Personnel of the company during the Finacial Year

The company recognizes Board of Directors, Chief Executive Officer and Senior Manager as

key managerial personnel of the company.The Key Managerial Personnel comprises of :

SN | Name " posiion

Board of Directors

1 Dr. Ram Hari Aryal Chairman

2 Mr. Deep Chandra Regmi Director

3 Mr. Ishwor Kumar Karki Director (from 2074/09/26 to 2075/11/21)
4 Mr. Deepak Sharma Pokhrel Director (from 2075/11/21 to 2076/10/08)
5 Mr. Ashwini Kumar Thakur Director

6 Mr. Sanjaya Adhikari Director

Senior Management

1

Mr. Shree Chandra Bhatta

(from 2075/05/06 to 2077/03/24)

2

Mr. Denesh Amatya

(from 2074/09/16 to 2075/05/06)

Transactions made with Key Management Personnel of the company during the year:

Amoun(in NPR)

Board of Directors and other committees/sub-committee

1 Board of Directors’ Meeting fees 631,000
2 Other Committee and Sub Committee Meeting Fees 195,850
3 Others(Fuel, communication and newspaper) 1,353,450
Senior Management

1 Salary & Allowances- Shree Chandra Bhatta (CEO) 5,290,321
2 Salary & Allowances- Denesh Amatya (from 268,544

2074/04/01 to 2075/05/06)

The directors are entitled to meeting fees on attending board and other committee meetings as well as
monthly allowances. Payments made to the director are net of taxes. There have been no financial

transactions with close family members of the directors except in the normal course of insurance

business.

Similarly, the transaction made with the entity who falls under related party as per NAS 24 are as

follows:

I Transactions with Related Party Amount in NPR

Balance with Global IME Bank Ltd.- Current Account

1,185,184

2

Commission Paid to IME Digital Pvt. Ltd.

292,250

K9
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3.30 Segment Reporting

Under NFRS 8 ‘Operating Segments’, the Company needs to determine and present operating

segments based on different types of insurance contracts issued by the company. The allocation and

apportionment of revenue and expenses to specific segments is done in the following manner, which

is applied on a consistent basis.

- Revenue and expenses that are directly identifiable to the segment are allocated on actual basis;

- Other revenue and expenses (including depreciation and amortization) that are not directly
identifiable to a segment are apportioned under unallocable section.

The management has identified group of product as reportable segments under segment reporting.
The company has divided into 5 main insurance products having own premium, claim, reinsurance,
service fee. The Company identifies following as reportable Operating Segment:

i. Endowment Policy

ii. Money Back Policy

iii. Endowment and Whole Life Policy

iv. Foreign Employment Term Policy

v. Term Policy
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I.ML.E. Life Insurance Company Limited

Registered and Corporate Office, KMC-26, Lainchaur
Notes to the financials statements for the year ended 16 July 2019

K&

4.2
Intangible assets Amount in NPR
Cost or deemed cost
Balance at 15 July, 2017
Additions 1,074,065
Disposals or classified as held for sale -
Balance at 16 July, 2018 1,074,065
Additions 183,625
Disposals or classified as held for sale -
Balance at 16 July, 2019 1,257,690
Accumulated amortisation and impairment
Balance at 15 July, 2017
Additions 14,376
Disposals or classified as held for sale -
Balance at 16 July, 2018 14,376
Additions 240,973
Disposals or classified as held for sale -
Balance at 16 July, 2019 255,349
Carrying Amount
At 15 July 2017 -
At 16 July 2018 1,059,689
At 16 July 2019 1,002,341
4.3
Financial Investments Amount in NPR
Particulars As at As at
16 July 2019 16 July 2018
Financial Investments at FVTOCI 50,200,000 25,200,000
Financial Investments at amortized cost 2,095,468,000 1,520,000,000
Total Financial Investments 2,145,668,000 1,545,200,000
4.3.1
Financial Investments at FVTOCI Amount in NPR

16 July 2019 16 July 2018

Corporate Equity shares:

Quoted

Unquoted

50,200,000

25,200,000

-Beema Prabardhan Kosh

200,000

200,000

-Nepal Infrastructure Bank Ltd.
(500000 Shares with Paid-up Value- 100)

50,000,000

25,000,000

Mutual funds:

Quoted

Unquoted

Allowance for impairment loss

Total

50,200,000

25,200,000
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4.3.2
Financial Investments at amortized cost Amount in NPR
Particulars ‘ As at ‘ As at
16 July 2019 16 July 2018
Fixed deposits 2,047,000,000 1,520,000,000
Corporate debentures 48,468,000 -
Government securities - -
Total 2,095,468,000 1,520,000,000
4.4
Loans at amortized cost Amount in NPR
16 July 2019 16 July 2018
Loans to Employees 10,573,935 3,735,237
Policy Loan 40,618,026
Loans to Agents 19,885,160 8,647,262
Total 71,077,121 12,382,499
4.5
Reinsurance Receivables Amount in NPR
Particulars As at As at
16 July 2019 16 July 2018
Receivables from Reinsurer 1,748,544 1,650,000
Total 1,748,544 1,650,000
4.6
Other Financial Assets Amount in NPR
Particulars As at As at
16 July 2019 16 July 2018
Interest receivable on fixed/call deposits 8,149,067 6,894,123
Interest receivable on debentures 1,010,845
Interest receivable on loans 1,724,094 66,676
Premium recivable from FE Pool 16,856,291 128
Security Deposits 412,200 314,250
Trade receivables - 853,995
Less: Allowance for doubtful trade receivables - -
Total 28,152,498 8,129,172
4.7
Other Assets Amount in NPR
Particulars As at As at
16 July 2019 16 July 2018
Salary Advance 2,317,041 2,421,500
Agent Advance 4,415 4,750
House Rent Advance 1,129,733 1,146,711
Prepayments 1,836,462 677,576
Deferred Interest (Employee Benefit) - 74,441
Total 5,287,651 4,324,977
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I.ML.E. Life Insurance Company Limited

Registered and Corporate Office, KMC-26, Lainchaur
Notes to the financials statements for the year ended 16 July 2019

4.8
Current tax assets (net) Amount in NPR
Particulars As at As at
16 July 2019 | 16 July 2018
Current tax assets 56,561,490 26,774,631
Current tax liabilities 329,668 -
Net current tax assets/(liabilities) 56,231,822 26,774,631
4.9
Cash and cash equivalents Amount in NPR
Particulars As at As at
16 July 2019 | 16 July 2018
Cash & cheque balance 218,862 296,457
Balance with Bank 174,166,024 | 250,678,518
Total 174,384,886 | 250,974,975
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I.ML.E. Life Insurance Company Limited

Registered and Corporate Office, KMC-26, Lainchaur
Notes to the financials statements for the year ended 16 July 2019

4.11

Financial Liabilities Amount in NPR

Particulars As at As at
16 July 2019 16 July 2018

Dividend Payables = -
Deposit insurance premium = -
Unidentified insurance premium 100,137 -
Trade payables = 15,390
Withholding Tax payables 8,272,726 3,473,771
VAT Payables = -
Premium Payable 434,200 274,813
Service charge payables 9,188,636 5,367,528
License fee payable 256,128 142,038
Salary Payables 2,250,468 208,586
Provident Fund Payable 112,340 360,524
Payables to agents 65,702,733 37,065,013
Payable Under OYVS 765,804 247,190
Bank Overdraft - -
Expenses payables 8,603,619 4,716,931
Payable to Reinsurer 2,598,063 37,471,895
House Rent Payable 4,356,350 -
Advance from Directors - 118,506

Total 102,641,204 89,462,184
4.12
Other Liabilities

Particulars As at As at
16 July 2019 | 16 July 2018

Gratuity Liability 5,078,341 1,962,770
Others 389,971 995

Total 5,468,312 1,963,765
4.13
Provisions

Particulars | As at | As at
16 July 2019 | 16 July 2018

Provision for staff bonus 14,860,230 9,375,211
Provision for Leave 7,729,499 2,960,474
Impairment on Agent Loan 4,769,840 -

Total 27,359,569 12,335,685
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I.M.E. Life Insurance Company Limited

Registered and Corporate Office, KM C-26, Lainchaur
Notes to the financials statements for the year ended 16 July 2019

4.14
Share Capital Amount in NPR
As at 16 July 2019 No of share Value Per Share Capital In value
Authorised capital 30,000,000 100 3,000,000,000
Issued capital 20,000,000 100 2,000,000,000
Paid up capital (A) 14,000,000 100 1,400,000,000
Calls in Advance (B)

1,400,000,000
As at 15 July 2018 No of share Value Per Share | Capital In value
Authorised capital 30,000,000 100 3,000,000,000
Issued capital 20,000,000 100 2,000,000,000
Paid up capital (A) 14,000,000 100 1,400,000,000
Share issue cost (B)
Total share capital (A+B) 1,400,000,000
4.14.1

Share ownership detail
The shareholding pattern on the company is as follows

As at As at
Shareholder Category 16 July 2019 16 July 2018

Promoters 100% 100%
Domestic organized institutions 30.34% 30.34%
Nepali Citizens 69.66% 69.66%
Foreign
General Public 0% 0%
General public
Others
Total 100% 100%

& 9
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4.14.2
Shareholders Holding 1% or more of the Paid Up Capital

As at

As at

Shareholder Category 16 July 2019 16 July 2018
% of holding % of holding

Across Money Transfer 2.06% 2.06%
Asian Distributor 3.57% 3.57%
Mr. Bishnu Kumar Agarwal 2.14% 2.14%
Mr. Chandra Prasad Dhakal 16.16% 16.16%
Mr. Hem Raj Dhakal 16.16% 16.16%
DD Investment Pvt. Ltd 2.07% 2.07%
Global IME Bank Ltd. 14.29% 14.29%
Hathway Investment Ltd. 1.42% 1.42%
IME Ltd. 4.29% 4.29%
Mr. Kalyan Gurung 1.91% 1.91%
Mr. Kamal Poudel 1.43% 1.43%
Mr. Min Bahadur Gurung 3.32% 3.32%
Mr. Nawaraj Nepal 2.50% 2.50%
Nimisha Investment Pvt. Ltd 1.39% 1.39%
Mrs. Sabitri Gurung 1.91% 1.91%
Mr. Sandeep Agarwal 1.79% 1.79%
Mr. Suraj Shrestha 1.43% 1.43%
Mr. Jeewan Kumari Aryal 1.07% 1.07%
Mr. Arjun Paudel Sharma 1.07% 1.07%
Mr. Ambika Prasad Paudel 1.07% 1.07%

81.05% 81.05%
4.14.3
Equity Share Capital — over the years movements
Paid up share capital of the Company has moved over the years as follows:

Amount in NPR
Particulars As at As at
16 July 2019 16 July 2018

Opening Share Capital

1,400,000,000

1,400,000,000

Add: Share issued to Merged entity

Add: Issuance of Right Share

Add: Issuance of Bonus Share

Add: Calls in advance

Less: Share issue cost

1,400,000,000

1,400,000,000

Closing Share capital

4.15

Other Reserves Amount in NPR

. As at As at

Particulars 16 July 2019 16 July 2018

Share premium reserve = -

Regulatory Reserve 1,559,664 1,559,664

Deferred Tax Reserve 85,479,804 21,558,881

OCI-Fair value reserve = -

OCI-Acturial gain/loss reserve = -
Total 87,039,467 23,118,545
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I.M.E. Life Insurance Company Limited

Notes to the financials statements for the year ended 16 July 2019

4.17
Income from investments Amount in NPR
. Year ended Year ended
Particulars | 16 July 2019 ‘ 16 July 2018
Interest income from Government securities -
Interest income from Bank deposits (fixed deposits) 191,746,676 [ 173,348,110
Dividend income from corporate equity shares -
Interest income from corporate debentures 1,010,845
Total 192,757,521 | 173,348,110
4.18
Other Income Amount in NPR
16 July 2019 | 16 July 2018

Premium late fee 808,317
Income from loan against insurance policy 1,626,931
Income from loans and advances (Other than policy loan) 1,947,643 412,091
Interest income from Bank deposits (call deposits) 6,488,508 4,859,761
Gain/(loss) on sale of property, plant and equipment 672,959 43,195
Gain/(loss) on sale of investment securities = -
Other incomes 2,888,121 238,413
Total 14,432,479 5,553,459
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I.M.E. Life Insurance Company Limited

Registered and Corporate Office, KMC-26, Lainchaur
Notes to the financials statements for the year ended 16 July 2019

4.20
Agent Expenses Amount in NPR
. Year ended Year ended
LB L) 16 July 2019 | 16 July 2018
Agent commission 172,119,922 78,777,570
Agent Training Expenses 1,424,028 869,515
Other Agent Expenses 89,080,374 53,706,746
Reversal of agent commission incurred but not paid - -
Total 262,624,324 | 133,353,831
4.21
Regulatory Service fees Amount in NPR
. Year ended Year ended
Particulars 16 July 2019 | 16 July 2018
Gross service fees 9,188,636 5,367,527
Less: Share of reinsurers 211,075 378,503
Total 8,977,561 4,989,024
4.22
Employees benefit expenses Amount in NPR

Particul Year ended Year ended
Arfiewans 16 July 2019 | 16 July 2018

Salary 43,126,344 25,983,841
Allowance 28,433,158 17,368,804
Dashain Allowance 4,769,844 400,256
Providend Fund 4,311,078 1,515,255
Training 1,712,403 153,441
Uniform 676,080 419,080
Medical 3,614,745 2,589,263
Insurance 106,469 35,774
Pension & Gratuity 3,578,623 1,962,770
Leave Encashment-Cash Payment 5,846,620 3,255,974
Staff Incentive 1,774,500 5,027,650
Force leave 876,951 502,127
Amortization of prepaid staff benefits - 49,276
Other Facilities = 106,226
Provision For Staff Bonus 5,485,019 9,375,211
Total 104,311,834 68,744,947
4.23
Impairment losses on financial assets Amount in NPR
Particulars Year ended Year ended
16 July 2019 | 16 July 2018
Write back of impairment loss on financial investments - -
Impairment losses on Financial investments = -
Impairment losses on loans & advances - -
Impairment on other financial assets 4,769,840 -
Total 4,769,840 -

& &
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I.ML.E. Life Insurance Company Limited

Registered and Corporate Office, KM C-26, Lainchaur
Notes to the financials statements for the year ended 16 July 2019

4.24
Depreciation and amortization Amount in NPR
Particulars Year ended | Year ended
16 July 2019 | 16 July 2018
Depreciation of Property & Equipment 16,599,610 7,715,607
Amortization of Intangible assets 240,973 14,376
Total 16,840,583 7,729,983
4.25
Other expenses Amount in NPR
. Year ended | Year ended
House Rent 25,673,276 16,286,124
Electricity & Water 1,663,018 772,428
Repair and maintenance expenses: 508,327 479,791
Vehicle Running Expenses 3,354,590 1,877,604
Annual Maintenance Charge 636,119 -
Communications 5,264,738 2,819,283
Printing & Stationary 4,340,570 4,092,118
Consumable Items 505,292 389,992
Traveling Expenses 2,486,131 2,056,875
Insurance Premium Expenses 599,922 364,426
Security Expenses 392,850 345,555
Legal & Consultancy Fees 488,000 243,250
Books & Periodicals 83,165 44,433
Advertisement Expenses 3,083,607 4,661,729
Business Promotion Expenses 2,495,858 1,790,907
Charity & Donations 73,950 26,151
AGM Expenses 400,000 92,283
Board meeting expenses:
*- Meeting Allowances 631,000 992,000
*- Others 1,407,192 1,089,753
Other committee meeting expenses: - -
'~ Meeting Allowances 195,850 -
'~ Others 15,445 12,695
Statutory Audit - -
'- Audit Fee 282,500 163,850
*- Other Audit Expenses 2,365 50,775
Internal Audit - -
- Audit Fee 226,000 203,400
*- Other Audit Expenses 284,151 285,186
Acturial Service Fee 1,233,393 3,196,404
Bank Charges & Commissions 56,707 20,235
Outsourcing Expenses 1,702,403 780,570
CSR Expenses 100,000 340,000
Other Office Expenses 2,455,283 2,762,312
Wages 665,240 708,608
Staff Refreshment Expenses 444,573 344,581
Staff Conference and Seminar Expenses 2,406,542 422,220
Utility & Janotorial 1,728,113 1,134,273
Policy Stamp Expenses 401,490 769,060
Medical fee 1,915,129 1,314,049
FE Pool related expenses 2,912,664 -
Fines and penalties 1,000 10,240
Loan written off - -
Other Written off Expenses = -
Rent, Rates & taxes 2,055,390 132,838
Share related expenses - -
Total 73,171,843 | 51,075,995

&9
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I.M.E. Life Insurance Company Limited
Registered and Corporate Office, KMC-26, Lainchaur
Notes to the financials statements for the year ended 16 July 2019

4.26
Amount in NPR

As at As at
Defi d tax

Deferred tax assets 86,408,347 22,873,346
Deferred tax liabilities (928,544) (1,314,465)
85,479,803 21,558,881

Recognised in
Opening Recognised in other
balance profit or loss comprehensive
income

2018-19

Closing balance

Other Loans and advances - - -
Unused tax losses 21,642,535 59,282,304 - 80,924,840
Provision for Impairment on agent loan - 1,192,460 - 1,192,460
Gratuity & Leave Fund 1,230,811 1,971,149 - 3,201,960
Operating Lease Payable - 1,089,087 - 1,089,087
Provision for staff bonus - - - -
Lease Equilization Reserve - - - -
Total of deferred tax assets 22,873,346 63,535,001 - 86,408,347
Property, Plant & Equipment and Intangible Assets (1,314,465) 385,921 - (928,544)
Net deferred tax assets/ (liabilities) 21,558,881 63,920,922 - 85,479,803
Recog ed
2017-18 Opening ecognised othe T
Dala C Pro 0 0 0 prene C
0
Other Loans and advances - - - -
Unused tax losses - 21,642,535 - 21,642,535
Allowance for loan impairment - - - -
Gratuity Fund - - - -
Leave encashment fund - 1,230,811 - 1,230,811
Provision for staff bonus - - - -
Lease Equilization Reserve - - - -
Acturial Gain /Loss - - - -
Total of deferred tax assets - 22,873,346 - 22,873,346
Property, Plant & Equipment and Intangible Assets - (1,264,356) - (1,264,356)
Intangible Assets - (50,109) - (50,109)
Total of deferred tax liability - (1,314,465) - (1,314,465)
Net deferred tax liabilities - 21,558,881 - 21,558,881
4.27
Earnings per share (EPS) Amount in NPR
Year ended Year ended
Particulars Units
16 July 2019 16 July 2018
Profit attributable to equity shareholders NPR 112,956,426 116,203,167
Weighted average of number of equity shares used in computin Nos.
ghiec averag quity puting 14,000,000 14,000,000
basic earnings per share
Basic and diluted earnings per equity share of Rs. 100 each NPR 8.07 8.30

& C
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5. RISK MANAGEMENT

5.1 Insurance Risk
The principal risk the Company faces under insurance contracts is that the actual claims and benefit
payments or the timing thereof, may differ from expectations. This is influenced by the frequency of
claims, severity of claims and actual benefits paid . Therefore, the objective of the Company is to
ensure that sufficient reserves are available to cover these liabilities.

The risk exposure is mitigated by diversification across a large portfolio of insurance contracts and
geographical areas. The variability of risks is also improved by careful selection and implementation
of underwriting strategy guidelines, as well as the use of reinsurance arrangements.

Various life insurance products are offered by the Company which are primarily categorised into
Term Policy, Endowment Policy, Money Back Policy and Endowment cum Whole life policy.
Products other than Term Policy have been designed to reduce the market and credit risks. Under
Endowment, Money Back and Endowment cum whole life policy, risks are largely passed on to the
policyholder. Partly, there is risk to the company in its income if the fund values decreases.
Insurance products carry mortality risk and also market risk to the extent that there are guarantees
built into the product design.

The main risks that the Company is exposed at the time of designing products are as follows

T

Mortality risk | Risk of loss arising due to policyholders’ death experience being different from
expected

Investment Risk of loss arising from actual returns being different from expected

Risk policyholder decision risk

Policyholder Risk of loss arising due to policyholders’ experiences (lapses and surrenders)

decision risk being different from expected

The Company also enters into reinsurance arrangement according to its Reinsurance Policy. Although
the Company has reinsurance arrangements, it is not relieved of its direct obligations to its
policyholders and thus a credit exposure exists with respect to ceded insurance, to the extent that any
reinsurer is unable to meet its obligations assumed under such reinsurance agreements.

The following tables show the concentration of life insurance contract liabilities by types of contracts.

& Q
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Amount in NPR

Particulars
e

Participating Contracts

Endowment policy 341,117,877 | 107,852,068

Money Back Policy 234,596,385 | 50,614,511

Endowent and Whole Life Policy 125,668,508 | 49,650,438

Non-Participating Contracts

Foreign Employement Term Policy 172,908,776 | 105,294,223

Other Term Policy 32,276 4,650

Total 874,343,821 | 313,415,891

5.2 Financial Risk

The primary source of financial risk to an insurer arises from its investment exposures and investment
activities. Thus, the investment portfolios maintain a prudent approach in its investment strategy and
investment exposures to ensure that investment returns are optimised on a risk adjusted basis and to
ensure the Company operates within its defined risk appetite.

Credit Risk

Credit risk refers to a risk that a counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting in
financial loss to the Company. Thus, for an insurance contract, credit risk includes the risk that an
insurer incurs a financial loss because a reinsurer defaults on its obligations under the reinsurance
contract

The following policies and procedures are in place to mitigate the exposure to credit risk:

The Company does not have any significant credit risk exposure to any single couterparty or any
group of counterparties.

Reinsurance is placed with counterparties that have a good credit rating and concentration of risk is
avoided by entering into agreement with more than one party. At each reporting date, management
performs an assessment of creditworthiness of reinsurers and updates the reinsurance purchase
strategy, ascertaining suitable allowance for impairment.

The company deals with only creditworthy counterparties and obtains sufficient collateral where
appropriate, as a means of mitigating the risk of financial loss from defaults.
The details of past dues and impairment of Financial Assets is presented below:



[
IMELIFE™

Ensuring Future

Amount in NPR

cost nor impaired 90 days to 180 days | impaired amount

Fixed Deposits 2,047,000,000 2,047,000,000
Corporate Debentures 48,468,000 48,468,000
Loans to agents 19,885,160 4,769,840 15,115,320
Loans to employees 10,573,935 10,573,935
Policy Loan 40,618,026 40,618,026
Receivables from Reinsureres 1,748,544 1,748,544
Deposits 412,200 412,200
Total 2,168,705,866 - - 4,769,840 | 2,163,936,025

Controls in place to mitigate Credit Risk: Investment Policy implemented by the company contains
analysis of the proposed investments. Further, the company follows investment directive issued by
Beema Samiti which contains restrictions and limits for particular sector of investment. All the
investmented are denominated in Nepalese currency and the company does not maintain any
investment exposure to assets held overseas. Majority of the investments are made in Fixed Deposits
of Class A commercial Banks within Nepal, thus prudently managing credit default risk.

b. Liquidity Risk

The risk that an entity will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with financial
liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset.

Liquidity adequacy is a measure or assessment of the ability of a company to meet payment
obligations in a full and timely manner within a defined time horizon. It is a function of its sources of
liquidity relative to its liquidity needs. Liquidity sources can be internal and external, available
immediately or within the defined time horizon, and includes all funds, assets and arrangements that
allow an insurer to meet its liquidity needs. Liquidity needs include all current and expected payment
obligations within the defined time horizon.

The following table depicts the maturity profile of the investment portfolio on a discounted cash flow
basis which is designed and managed to meet the required level of liquidity as and when liquidity
outgo arises taking into consideration the time horizon of the financial liabilities of the business.

Amount in NPR

As at 16 July 2019 Less than 1 year 1 to 3 years xg:s ULEDIY Total
Assets
Financial Investments at amortized cost 2,095,468,000 - - 2,095,468,000
Financial Investments at FVTOCI - - 50,200,000 50,200,000
Loans at amortized cost - 71,077,122 - 71,077,122
Other Financial assets at amortized cost 28,152,498 - - 28,152,498
Cash and Cash equivalent 174,384,887 - - 174,384,887

2,298,005,384 71,077,122 50,200,000 2,419,282,506

©9
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Liabilities

Insurance Contract Liabilites - 874,343,821 874,343,821

Financial Liabilites 102,641,204 - 102,641,204

Other Liabilities 5,468,312 - 5,468,312

Provisions 27,359,569 - 27,359,569
135,469,086 874,343,821 1,009,812,907

II.

I11.

O

Controls in place to mitigate Liquidity Risk : The maturity patterns of investment and other assets are
regularly monitored. Adequacy of Liquidity is reviewed to ensured the company will be able to meet
its obligations in both current and stressed conditions for the next 12 month.

Market Risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises three types of risk: foreign exchange rates
(currency risk), market interest rates (interest rate risk) and market prices (price risk).

Currency Risk

Foreign exchange risk is the potential for the Company to experience volatility in the value of its
assets, liabilities and solvency and to suffer actual financial losses as a result of changes in value
between the currencies of its assets and liabilities and its reporting currency. The Company does not
maintain foreign currency denominated assets in its investment portfolios and as such is not exposed
to foreign exchange risk related to investments.

The Company has no significant concentration of currency risk. The amount with reinsurer is settled
in Nepali Rupee.

Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates.

The major interest rate risk that the Company is exposed to is the discount rate for determining
insurance liabilities.

Equity Price Risk

Equity price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in equity prices (other than those arising from interest rate risk or
currency risk), whether those changes are caused by factors specific to the individual financial
instrument or its issuer, or by factors affecting all similar financial instruments traded in the market.

Controls in place to mitigate Market Risk: Currency Risk, Interest Rate Risk and Equity Risk are
monitored regularly through analysis of relevant information from External Sources.
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ATLR-RY
_ q¥
wE. | ferrcor | wwe | wmHE
1 |eTeETe gr g At 2,944,293 %,5%%,9%3
R |drrerEeT fadmr witere uTe g A s q,%\9% 93] -
3 | (@WeEd AT aTed) wSETe 9T g atdl s - -
¥ | e YT g efeh - -
4 |IAETEETe YT g At q,9%¥g Y ¥¥ 9,540,000
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99 |31 B ST ATATIH - -
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TR o= @ &2 ge) ¥, 94% L¥R R9,9%4, 1 0%
ST qI9%,R%R,3%R LEAANEAR 15
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q

q gfqerdraTs faT afd %Y, 908% 933 39,054,093
3 a AT fad At _ _
3 TS fo A 445,053 39,¥ 5 5]y
¥ AR Holl - -
Y AT G - -
% U7 faERT TR AT - -
© fafaa ame 933, 5% 193,40%
S YETTF /Blleeg HFHIeTS (& areel = -
e ST gl TXTHT BT [ afehr 5,R9R, 8% 3,¥09% L4
90 q it faw ardr - -
1 ATIHT - -
9 AT ATeeb e aATehr R,455,%3% 4,359 4%5
93 FHARATS fad aAfehl 3,34 ,90% R0g 4 &%

9% FEATARATS [ad ate - -
94 AHTAT & Al AT = -

a7
(%) FHEATL HATT BT - -
(@) AT ATZE ATqd faed EECR RS Q¥R U3
() TR AT w1 faa aifer - 4,%50,000
(9) S@T aReTur 9ok aTad Sawd] ¥¥% 340 359 340

9% - . :
() Gl qRET G a9 A€ - %Y,000
(=) AT AT ek %00 000 9,9%R,¥00
(@) 9 T @ AT FaT 3,300,93% 19%3,3%%
(ST) TTRT & aTfeh =T F= P 99,3¥0 3%0,4R¥
(+F) fafae 4,39%,9R09 439,594
ST RG,R5%,54Y% GRAWR,R%0

TTYAT-3%

TQATR EH e
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AE.TH.S. AEH AT FH {AiHeS

T - 5
e 2 O e e O R 1 5 O G I LGS

FEFH T IR=d

AZ.UH.3. ATSh TR AT fdafgag (LM.E. Life Insurance Company Limited) (Zr&rdafe, "sea=" sfawer)
AqTHT T fataa gt WUl SiE| ST SEEr T BT 87 | T9hl e a9l FURd Hraad
AR, FISHTUSTHT TEhT B | T HFAT JIATIRIATS SR RN T JBATHT TEehl B | AT ATHT U,
R0%R T AT (AT, 0% % AfaTH T ¥ FiHfqare il I T2 Sirad T Sgaard F=rad
TS ATTHT |

gqd fa<ii faervres Fvaier @oares atafaer fAfq 3000 I3 30 AT I¥F Q0% AT SSHATE qTRA
TRTE B |

#F ol faror qarieT SeRes
drar afafaer fbfg 004 /0% /93 &1 fHeem awife® o9 e drar gfafaer R09% /0¥ /9% ST
T Sae ATHT ST T drehal [ fgawer qeawir e aw@its® Nepal Standards on Auditing 800

Special considerations — Audits of Financial Statements prepared in Accordance with Special purpose frameworks

AT g @I Afed dTHT FIAfqHT TRqH AT I5qd o FaRe Jar TR g |

I FTde Uhlgrerdd WEATERT W bl F9Td faaira giqag= (Nepal Financial Reporting Standard -
NFRS) ®T STETRIT &7 04 /0% &I gg faxira faawor qaw wfvwar & |

FEAH A faarues Ufqeia® Hed daamen (Historical Cost Convention) ¥ ¥t FHT =4l
Jool@ TRUGMAT ek GaHTal (Accrual) STERHET @@l T ATHTIG: A @TH [Ggriee (Generally
Accepted Accounting Principle) , (F=iferd &TeweRT ATIAAT & S#T UF R0%R AT fAommEer 0¥ qar
Frar afafaer faira faezor Gveedl M AfaaaT ST 2Earae T WEl J=ad GHddTs ST AMg

TR TRTHT T |

foirar faarRues qar 9&T ATaR AIHUE o€l qi(des ad Jod@ TRUH T | q99T Jooi@  TTRAT
ATek AT AMdesd! qTeAAT MR TTAT TRUH & |

g ITAHSH AR :
foxira fqaRues AW AT @il (Fgaaadl ATaRAT &0 AT FFd q91 IMacashl ATHA
T 958 99 ATAR [0 [GaRodT Joo@ TRUH ¥, a1, J1 d97 @=edl dhes qd7 ardard
fafdeT =i FTad Tacadrs I9Td 168, | ardiaed aRemH (Actual Result) Swif@d AT AwaT fAeT
BT WHG | AEih ATHHT TRA o TRAqTATS AT AAtTH AT qiGE dAaTA GHA AN A G |

T ez AR (Going Concern Basis)
FAID] ool GO FLIT Aldiege FOAT T g Fad a1 Fdd [GUIHT F@rsiEr Ty
FEAM] IJTA HAewd AT FFIAT STHRATTH Ao TTHT TooATAT g qa HIHT (q9aed AUH
FASRITAT TRIT & | FFIHTRT ATATogm I TAT &Y O Fe AR AHTYSAAT bl ST FFIATR] FoATeAF
TS ATERT ST | TET HEHIRT GoaTad ATAITER] HaqTd Foarad e BRaTehdrd awg T a1
FHEIHTRT GIRAT T ATATT T S | G99 TR (a0 faaxues afafsgidrer dmar (Going Concemn
Basis) AT TR TRUHT & |
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o YHE A@r A

1. feR FHfq er@rsd |ifd
FHAI [ gHfaes Ufderids Hed Aagrun (Historical Cost Concept) 1 SATATRAT ARTA  HeAHT
AGTE T Al FATAFIT TR G |

R gIEhel Al

90 &

fer gmiaes @fte e fafa sfe gmedr ™ Aifa fauer 1w er gwfaesar
I Effective Useful life @7 mamaT fHeor el ¥ S@ITTH®T 879 &5l aXagsdl

HTITRHT Tl Hea Jurmelr (Diminishing Balance Method) T STERHT T@Tg= T A Sqervad
TRTH B |
R ol I - o o
1 wid=R qar = Y%
3 FTATAT FTHATH ceA
3 FIEY AT AT FTHIA Y%
¥ REIIEG] R0%
Y I g 4%

A FHATS feAsTeleg TFIMAHT fAsTepl THATATIERT ATARHT ¥ aY gTHel T T UATTHT Y
TRT AFTTHT THEIHT gTARE T AT ATATIT bl 3, |

FEA ATHT (R FHIfdesdl aui=aaT aikero (Impairment Test) ¥T&T, WITHT TS T
ATGF AT ATHA T ATAR YT T A SeATAT AT G¥des Al ATGF aoHAT
yaorEs T it fawer g |

ISTehd A R8s G¥eal q@rgd Jid .
FFIA H{ FHTE T 4,000/~ TV T T QHATIET TOARTT TRl AT 9fF Fepell 47 @fkg wus
TYAT G AT AN ATATAT ThT G |

ATTHY AT AT AEHIS Al

FFATR AR T 045 T ATHT HAHEAT J04R ATAR ATTHIH] FaLdl T @I el
@

FA AIFT THA (FAF F FATANA T AT qfeadreh)) d@rs arArT qrafde o faawe qwer
e, 084 ATAR ATHRI—ATRE feqra qa1 a7 =T Eqasl R Aq9R aighis 9 Ald
HATTIT THl T | T h ATRINH/GH A5 ATHT AT EQqradT I@rad Aid Aqeread MU
3 |

AT S@Tgd Afd

mﬁzﬁrmﬁﬁ@m%ﬁww@aﬁat
) SO YRHRB! aAq9T/HUYT a7 H9TA ARBRB] FHET I HUYTHT 97 fedAd [ATAIS
WW/WWWWWWWWWW
g QoY awitH afsa He@ (Face Valug) a1 9%« Hed (Cost Price) el W &dl B wler
Wmﬂﬁﬁfamﬂiﬁan
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(@) GUE (F) FHGH TRTH AAEH A5d A A=T IRA Tod q¢1 FUAT F&AT qel IHAATS
TN TRUST @9 (Deferred Expenditure) T TTHT @S9 T A1 @odls AT ANTHIB! T
[ FHTAT(qe ATERAT (Pro-rata Basis) SI<@ I+ AT Iaehl S |

() UL (%) THINSTH TRUH AR AFd Hed A1 WA HA HH AT T Tl TS
T Aty o AT ATIRHAT ATHIaTe ATART FOHT @TgT T Ald el B |

(&) GUE () THITHB! F=AAT a1 HOTAD] @IFA TR HA A=l G Hed FH 81 TTHT
XA Heh THHH] SRTEY AT (Provision) T I Teehl B |

(3) e /faxirg Fearhr Hedl (e a7 ARTReE T FITel @l ATSTHEeHT TRUH dMHIars
qraT THAAT F@IE AT Whl G | A A AR TG GHINT qheg Fel PROEd qcohlel
FRAT g9 A9 Aa=dT FordT AUAT TLAT AT IHHBT ARMEX AT TH Al AaeFad Tl
3 |

(=) ufesr [afAde FFaIel Gierhd ATAT TRUHT TS A HedAT S@I3H T JATHT TRTH
AT @IF A TRUBT Hed A=l o9 Hed HH g4 TUH TN b IHH aRTeR
FNITHHET AT AT 2@edT (Provision) T I Y&l B |

(@) ufea® fAfqee FFAAIR FeAIH SARTHT AW TRCH AR JAfad wAT aHitaH faamas
FSRHT Ffereed THCAT (T S aR T Aifd e Wbl 3 |
() FEIATA TERHT AT bl YfeeAss fAfide Tl PRIER T9 FATIqas qruerl fafaer de

T T A TS RA A @3 Al @bl G |
(AT) HEIATA ARHT AT bl feeAer [A{Hag PRI bRIAR 9 SoArsidqa qraepr fafaer
A I 9 & AAITs G A q@Ts dl Al SRTeRe] Sqq@dT T Ald T6hl & |

() GUL () FHITH AT TRYRT TAX JATAT HIAT FTHITTA (AT IoTRebl e gAT (De-
listed STUHT) FT AT IRTEReb! FGXIT TH AT TEhl S |

() A HTAT THISTH HFIAlehl @HaHT FATTH a1 "Reehl R, T9dq9d, HITT a1 I
THEIeTs AIHAT FHTELT T A FaaFad TeHl B |

el geag THANA AN
FEAT fagefl GRTET @ FEAR T AMACAeg STl [T G3el TATRY T qAT aiHe [aia
XATE IT TRFATs ATh A [EETaH J@rsd T Ald daaed TWHl G |

STk ATRRTAT o@Ts Al

FFIATA MG YIAP! ATIRAT ATHIeh AR @I T A Aqevad TWepl & | 9 A8 i
FHelr wvaT dTHTeesk ARl AAT 9fg AUAT 30 Aol SdTs dFafd auHT ATRETHT o@rs T
AT AT TWH G |

IIRTE AR TS Siad STHT EaqrEdl o9 2 fearesr dHeeE Pool SERATIAETE YT
qUH! faaRo JaR FHEE G g7 A9+ @3 9T o @rs T A@HId Wl B |

oC

qASTAT A AT @I Al
FEA qAAA] T ATAd YT g HATHRT HAAAATS TG TRl ATIRAT AR aed X
QA HEATE Afgd THIT TSl HUH! ATEITHT 78 Y |¥e A= Al daaed THl g |

I AT @3 ddT FHhIg AId :

THEE 9T A, R gwiq fabrare ura aremE, o= & (faurerger fadmr feueer
FHATaTed) AT YT AT AMTIdHT ARHIATE GIEATAT (Accrual) TITRHET @Tg= el faAT [fafdaer
faxirar faaror fae, R0%Y AR &4 ATRMIATE A1F Y fGard q9r qrhT A Gdasr 97
FHITH FIEHIE T ANd ATAHT TWH T |
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FAT AGTFA A

FEIAT T T FoAlhl ATl g TAT ATIR HUHT AETHT @Tga T G | ArHTer@el faaram
GaTH Tl ATedh (AT Foll S AR A Higdr a1 |7 9737 del AT Tl ATeel qUAT &l
FAl SRTEARB]  THH FALAT A AT Ll @ | AH@d [T & Tl oAbl bl
gAIA AT H] AT YaTH RUHT Folldls Holl RIHFATE 8dls THEASH T W G | Jodh
AT TR ATHT TR g ATHTAE b A AT &l G |

A @ ASHIE Al

FHIA e AT @dATs SIShIe &l faxiid faarer e fHaer, R0%% ATAR ATRT AT
feamaar qo gfqerd T &b TEHars dra Ay fedEer fqfieeel dR qMER Aiewie T Al
HAAFT T G |

FEIAA THTAT ASHDH! ITAT THHB! AN AT T&T [qHTG FHITH qRIAT T 9 A q9T &1
T FgdleHl T AEeTd WH qur AEE @Y gid HEE MR @d d@red T it
HTATIT T B |

FafTer AT wAte fee faw srEadmaeT afa qETr Pool SHERATIN A UTS UG ferawer
AR FHATHT [EEITHT g AT M SR THAATS @3 T AT &bl 3 |

AT AT S19d STIed STl Qg i ¢
() FoIAT AU AT SHABRMAT FATHT (IBNR) AT ITEAT aM9d AcAB] AT TS Q0
FAeior T 9T U AHTET HeATs IqdaeH] ATIRAT AT T A qqedead TR G |

(@) rHT T ATIqET BeAle g afte 9o I, Aty qaif oy, At ety aeifta arr qer
THYT He FTET ATIT A (IHTEEA] 0% THT Q4 () &1 AT A=d el ardl ThHB 194
GiqeTa T FGEIT T Al AqATT TRTHT 3 |

o

T SEGTIHT a9d diehIe AT
FEA AT UA, e qar dmr atataer fadie fgar areed Méem, oty dqar s=q
FIEHIS T AT fagus § |

FHATT e, fa8T 97 o= qigar argd & =g ¢
FEIATDT FHAT HIHEAT FTAR FHARI I, [aaT T97 =7 Fqiadr araq qa<dr T A Tadhl
EX

9TRTEIE ATHTHI HFEIT Al
FFIATCA ATHTEAE ATATHID] AT HATITIAA [HEROT T TAATT AR AT T AT el G |

qI@T @9 @3 A

() TRTFTF qIT I oA Gelesdls FFIAT Goarad TUe TUHT @9 oed Jlid (agus 3

(@) ATAG T bl AT HTHTHATS WA TRTH] @Fhl FIHT q@Tsd T 1 @hars oIl
T Aty i AT ATURAT Tqer@e T A @l 3 |

¥ AIfdEs :
AT, AR A fedqre, 9 2T T e Sadaew G s 9 ¥ e a9 a6 s
T A @l A
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FINF T AT T=T FH AR ATHIeh IX ANBUHI T ATH] AT FHIG aT9d JTal i T
qov fepfaHeT dTHTRT AFHT SAMGH aT9d @8 ST edbebl TATH TqeTd THH AT SrATSd
HATST AUHI AT A T grg Al AT HH dgd T qMIcd THH AT 9 Al
fTsus 3 |

Thd SMHT Tesh &Y AMBUH T ATHT AT FAG aTId ITAr qRIA T A9 (BIaHEBT SR
AT ARl IS T a1 AHTE HedTed A0S AT 9 del g5 a1 A3l HH
TE TR I THH AT T ANl [T2uH § |

Pool STEEIATIAGIRT Tl Saf¥Teh AT FITET Sa= STATRT 8FAT  Pool SAGLATAATE I
AUH [qaR0 JTARF THH ATH SAM@H AT FFLdT T @I edl B |

HETaqia AT (e qeHle A

FEIATS T JepTRepT STHT SaTael NT Ugd Hel Uil qAeTHTRl et TRl | I
AETfaa=l qAadT @=odrs faaratatas fafqa faaro gwafer fAgew aataw awafaa dm
AT AT AHBA IR TR 7 AT [ (Sum at Risk) H1 ATGRHAT AT =T fedma«n
JIERIE T of@l AId WH | [T @ a5 THaTHT FFIATEeeT TUH GERTATEH!
AT FEITed AT qUHT 7 A@Tg T G &l F |

&) T W

®

)
@

).

AT @A 93 ATER FHF(G q9T qacashl d@rgel AR (Accounting Base) ¥ Y TR
(Tax Base) T WUH FXF AAAR T FHIH d@FHT TRUH G | [qai [q6ro aqar
THEI T SIER] IHH qIT FY AR a9 ®¥b 95 ol g1 e a=x (Temporary
Difference) &1 HRUI] AIEGSHT JSIAT g4 F< aMUA qAT FHIAH] AN AT I<eTqed TIIH
Fh! A@TST TRUD! T | AITAd AQGTHT qIT S| Frgiaer fase T gaies faxira faazoran
TRE FY GH qaT AIcadrs GarErs (Netted Off) TR T ATAR ATEATTHT TRTH ATIR
gufa qar T A=Ta a@Tged T A [qgUel & | TWF 2 ¥l JURRh @i
PRATReTIRT PR WA FY G GOAT TOHT TR F SIS BT @Sl THH ard qr
FIIH! THEH TWAH F dTech A7 FATTART ATNT G 7 A Teehl G |

T Y A@TgA T @I Tl G |

FHA Y

FFI(Ah] HIT T@THTT HAAHR G TITHT General Purpose  Financial Statement ¥ Special
Purpose Financial Statement TR ATHT AR 6@Td ATAR SAH T FT AT @& ATH
T 9 FH g Ale THASBI 90 Fqerd HHAT AFE ar9d el T @l A1d Tedl g |
HETaard SISTHTHT ATRI-AE feqrd o=vid aishisdl ANl Iqded THHEHI 90 FfaeTd
FaTST AE@MINT  TEhl G |

qifaderee? #W (Policyholder’s Fund) #T feMTS Wideed #¥aR &A1 ARG @t Sehid
HUH ATARH THH AH QNG Tadl G |

forfir faRoraT Seoi@ AU sihewells AfTehehl FUATHT YA TRUHT T |
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ATIAT-}
11 O L L e 2 O A M L
q  IRITad SMIcaes

(37) T[hT AT STRI & sl AT AHTH |

i q—mﬂﬁrsﬁiﬂaw TATHT |
(@WWWWWWWWWWWWW THTHT |
(%) ArHF a7 SHehehl THATS [GZUH TR : THTHT |

(I) 9 TIA : THTH |

X ATHTEA ATHES TN HATSA &l AT T ATIRET |
FEIATR] M HATST FE=IH] I8 9 S[ArsEe & [oAree® (Gross Premium Method) — Temem
I AT TRUR B | I HeAaTsd &l Al Wwwﬁﬁﬁm%%
Wﬂﬁ"@‘ralaﬁawnﬁ&ﬁmaﬁ%wﬁaﬁw&wz%iowﬂi%/ TiferiTees?
®M _(Policyholder’s Fund) AT ARTRT G | TqHT aﬁrﬁ?ﬁ FATeAh aﬁqﬁm fafq 2099/0% /09 FT %%
A SSPPT MU ATIAR T 3,¥% 44,500/~ ATRT A fearaare faw S sroar aivesr g | a9
qra. mﬁﬂﬁmwwwﬁwaﬂw&rmmaﬂn

3 ATHEE] GEHT ATTH! AT qd7 f9a1ees |
FEIHTRT FEARTAT b AT o faarees 3 |

¥ ], AT q4AT RUR FFEITAeR! AT TRUSRT gierergar |
FHAT, A AT 2R Feafaer it i gfaegar Tawer |

Y FHTEET GFeT ST s [l qehidTess Jed :
) FETS @RE THT T TEHESH Sy T2 S |
o) fasnt TRTET FFITAH! TR I ATH G |
WWWWWHWW/WWWWl
T (%)

FE | T & TR HiwaTd wa@f 79 ¥ fr | s Hisera
/hﬁfﬁl@r

WW?WW - - - -

SreheRl UM qAT gd 9T

~0

FfoTs Sepepl Hedl fHarT

4,300,000,000

C[RQQ’OOO’OOO

5R%,000 000

9,980 000 00O
) ) )

T S e e

320,000,000

V8 {00 000

20,400,000

388,000,000

ArHEd AT ATSTAT

wfog® q

TS Sehebl AUTIRR AT

forer FFaeireh! Hedr faed

Ifecter fafgag Frareh!
fearar

¥ ¥%5,000
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QY,000,000
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S Hiserd fedre g | qraredTd o/ fad dearer audT aiede! feqre (e avear =g
e qur fadia FeAEeHT Wl g3 Hisard #FIHThl [EEraE T Reconcile e @, T faia GegrEwEe
HISETd I 99 9 ATH 3 |

TAATHEINR] FRIAT

qAAHE [a9d] FREAR fEdEdrs Hamdd] GadT Aede! wdrd Mo @exe TR ks 3 |

AP TRl AT FATAd AT UA, FIHEaell 91 S| qiafqare difet FHIfTd T8 A<ad
FFAM TR AT F=AAd arA7 UA, (HaHreedr a9t drHr dtafae difeuer s/ @ied aqar
T THT B |

FTIHIR] FoATAh a7 GoATARE rIHId ATeh o7 LTI FBRIAR AUH! (a0

FEAIHT GoaTdAd, THE FIARRI Adohd TIT ALATTHH] AMHAE TEH FeATdATs GFg Telhl FTHT
fTgU®T & | TP o 0By /0% HT HFIg UETEeH! faarl A+ FHITTH T 3 |

g1 W gk e qeger

o7 fou =vg U RECIEEY

T 39T AR Flbl G (Al 309% /0% /3% T A 206K /99/39 FF)
. o1 fou® el drEvd geerasd (T 208 /99 /39 TdetE i 09§ 1q0105 +)
1 YA BHAR T FeATAD

ot g7 afaeerr RESICEd
T = W TG HURRI Afgga (TG 206 /04 /0% T 3@ FAiq R00903RY Taa+H)
. o7 fereT s fAfea weTera® (TRfd R09Y /0] /98 TTq @ 00y /Y /0% TdTH)

< WO

N 6 M X

q :

q. e qTE AL AF fdtAc

3. ATS.UH.3. fefoed grem.

g THETATs TRUH ATE TThT (TFTTER EH B |

FSATAE QAT AT A [T/ IT-iHfa a®

g4 s ks
GHTeTF FTATTHR! TSP HT: 39,000
q=T AT/ IT-ATAfT T5F W 924,540
AT (T, TR T AT ATqd 1) q,343,%¥%0
STHT R950,3¥0
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11
1%
13
9%

AT T

YRR AT < T IFH (%)
A Az Wz T FEEE A 4,320,391
AT T s m:?wwowoﬂ Sha 2094/ 0%/ 0%, TEH) A
I

Tq FATHT GEOE AT TEEd AGUHS A [ATHISH] Todl GIATH] T AT H] HETTHT
%.99,54,95% /- HIeGTd TPl ¥ TT @TAT FFHT FodTdAd gqd AeATIhEb! Goil THH STHAT T GIIeTTeT
fordr | g @ G ataa afs BRIER aTEdd a7 FRER TUH & |

T FHAIHT ITIFResHl @A Tehl AT Arguas fefea gl o g qaes o= y=faa oo
HAAT g1 #RIER (Arm's Length Basis) & ¥9HT Siad dMAT AWEal HH a9d 9 AT 3.
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